# West Hillhurst Planning Committee Meeting Minutes November 20, 2023 7:00pm Zoom Meeting

Attendance

Chairperson: Interim Chair Marc Rosso

Coordinator: Karen Dahl

Members present: Janice Paskey, Byron Miller, Wayne Newby, Leigha Pidde,

Ken Hersen

Guests present: Kalika Hoogstraten (CivicWorks), Sydney Bailey (RNDSQR),

Mark Ewanishin, Kim Mikkelsen, Stephen Hansen, Jon & Jasna Heinrichs, David Sane, Rebecca Sullivan, Jim Chen

## 1. 7:00pm LOC2023-0342: 114 & 118 19 Street NW, Land Use Amendment to accommodate MU-1

Proposing 2 Buildings, 3-storeys high

• 12 three-bedroom units; 4 one-bedroom units

• One commercial / retail unit at grade

- 8 vehicle parking stalls (6 resident, 2 visitor / 1 timed loading stall),
  accessible via rear lane Secure Bike / Scooter / Stroller Storage Units
- Units will be rentals managed by RNDSQR.
- There is no tenant in place for the commercial space.
- Intend to use the timed parking stall for the commercial loading.
- Will have a Transportation Impact Statement completed.

#### West Hillhurst Planning Committee comments:

- The WHPC is of the position that the best development outcomes come from a broadly participated planning process such as the Riley Communities LAP. We are not calling for a halt to (re)development, only a temporary halt to land use amendments until the current LAP process is completed.
- The increase to vehicular traffic generated by the proposed development would pose a substantial increase in hazards to pedestrians and cyclists. This is in direct violation of multiple city policies that place pedestrians and cyclists at the top of the mobility hierarchy.
- There is insufficient parking for the number of proposed units and a commercial business.

- The community has spent four years working on 19 Street Streetscape through three rounds of consultations. All engagements point to wider sidewalks and a pleasant pedestrian experience. We argue against reduced setbacks or any design that would limit sidewalk expansion. We also argue a pleasant pedestrian experience involves maintaining the current established trees on site.
- The WHPC acknowledges increasing concerns with issues arising from Airbnb rentals within the community. Although the regulation of such activities is outside the scope of this application, the committee would like to see increased emphasis on properties suitable for long-term rather than short-term occupation.
- The WHPC expects the development to be built with high quality materials such as brick or stone.
- We expect assurances from the builder that the tree bylaw and sidewalk remediation will be followed.

West Hillhurst Transportation Committee comments:

- THe WHCA Transportation Committee requests a Traffic Impact Assessment for this application. This is needed to determine appropriate suggested flows to Kensington Rd/19 Street NW, and to mitigate traffic, noise and air impacts on adjacent streets.
- This development does not qualify for parking relaxation because West Hillhurst does not have primary transit and any future plans identified by the city are not sufficient grounds to grant a relaxation.
- West Hillhurst does not currently have any transit routes (including the newly revised Route 1 as of Fall 2023) that satisfy the City's own definition of "Primary Transit". In the 2020 Calgary Transportation Plan, this is defined as i) <10min frequency ii) 15 hrs a day iii) 7 days a week.</li>
- West Hillhurst also does not have a BRT Route such as Route 305 BRT service as providing Primary Transit to West Hillhurst. This route was discontinued in Fall of 2023. As background, this route was always incorrectly classified as "BRT" service its name a relic from 2018 when it was replaced by the MAX Orange Route on 16th Ave. Previously, Route 305 ran 3 buses during the AM & PM rush hours periods respectively, on a 30 minute frequency. This was more properly classified as "express bus" service.
- While Primary Transit might exist on City of Calgary maps and plans as per the file manager's email, West Hillhurst does not currently have

primary transit that would satisfy the parking relaxations for this building. We urge the file manager to verify facts with Calgary Transit.

- We draw the file manager's attention to the recent SDAB hearing concerning a building on 19 st. where the Board noted the City of Calgary had provided incorrect transit information pertaining to West Hillhurst.
- We ask that the City of Calgary review the accuracy of its information as it pertains to transit in West Hillhurst.
- We also note the applicant is mentioning bike lanes on 19 St. At this time there is no design and no funding for any such infrastructure. The applicant is also mentioning primary transit. We welcome primary transit but at this time there is none on Kensington Rd.

#### 2. 7:40pm Bethany Redevelopment

- Residents attended the meeting to discuss concerns over the height of the building, parking, access to sunlight, and the current sewage backup problem along 8 Ave that will be exacerbated.
- The new development will have 420 units.
- It is unclear what will happen to the existing Bethany building.
- Expect the DP by the end of the year.

#### 3. 8:00pm Development Permit Applications:

DP2023-07741: 2231 Bowness Rd NW, Addition: Single Detached Dwelling (covered patio)

• The applicant should consider water drainage issues on this parcel.

DP2023-07850: 2402 Westmount Rd NW, New: Multi-Residential Development (1 building)

- There are two City owned old growth trees, a Norway and a Colorado spruce, on the SE corner of the property that were not on the circulated plans. We await the amended plans following the DTR that clarify the landscaping plans for the development to provide accurate comments.
- The south side of Kensington Road is one of our community's biggest challenges and we support developments that improve the streetscape.
- New developments are required to plant trees to enhance our neighbourhood's urban canopy. We expect the tree schedule to be followed and monitored as per the City's tree requirements for new homes bylaw:

https://www.calgary.ca/development/home-building/new-home-trees.html

• The applicant should consider water drainage issues on this parcel.

DP2023-07959: 2317 2 Ave NW, New: Single Detached Dwelling Dec 11

- This development does not fit into the context of our community as it proposes vehicular access from the lane to an attached garage.
- New developments are required to plant trees to enhance our neighbourhood's urban canopy. We expect the tree schedule to be followed and monitored as per the City's tree requirements for new homes bylaw:
  - https://www.calgary.ca/development/home-building/new-home-trees.html
- The applicant should consider water drainage issues on this parcel.

#### 4. 8:45pm Riley Communities Local Area Plan Update

- November 6 2023 public engagement meeting had over 120 attendees
- Public engagement (Phase 3:REFINE) comments extended until November 20.

### 5. 8:55pm Other Items:

- Approve October 16, 2023 Meeting Minutes
- New Business

#### 6. Information Items:

- SB2023-0357: 2019 Bowness Rd NW, Proposed Use: Single Detached Dwelling(s)
- SB2023-0382: 2716 5 Ave NW, Proposed Use: Semi Detached Dwelling(s)

Adjourned 9:00pm